
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor 

 
James L. Armstrong 

City Administrator 
 Bendy White 

Mayor Pro Tempore 
Grant House 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Stephen P. Wiley 
City Attorney 

Dale Francisco 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Frank Hotchkiss 
Randy Rowse 
Michael Self 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov 
 

NOVEMBER 22, 2011 
AGENDA 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council meeting begins at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to 
the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located 
at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular City Council meeting, and at the 
beginning of each special City Council meeting, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item not on the Council's agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a “Request 
to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the City Council.  Should City Council business 
continue into the evening session of a regular City Council meeting at 6:00 p.m., the City Council will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The City Council, upon majority vote, 
may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City Council 
regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a 
“Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City 
Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the City 
Council.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the City Council upon request of a Councilmember, City staff, 
or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to 
comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your “Request to Speak” form, you should come 
forward to speak at the time the Council considers the Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to gain access to, comment at, or participate in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator's Office at 
564-5305 or inquire at the City Clerk's Office on the day of the meeting.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior to 
the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements in most cases. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular City Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV 
Channel 18 and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in 
Spanish on Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check 
the City TV program guide at www.citytv18.com for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee meetings, and for 
any changes to the replay schedule. 

http://www.ci.santa-barbara.ca.us/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


 

11/22/2011 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 1 

 
 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

 2:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 
AFTERNOON  SE SSION 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive the reading and approve the minutes of 
the adjourned regular meeting of September 26, the regular meeting of 
October 4, and the special meeting of October 6, 2011. 
  

2. Subject:  October 2011 Investment Report  (260.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council accept the October 2011 Investment Report. 
  



 

11/22/2011 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 2 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

3. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance For A Grant Of Easement At 633 Bath 
Street (330.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving the Grant of an Easement for 
a Private Sewer Service Lateral Across the City-Owned Property at 633 Bath 
Street to Richard L. and Teresa Vaughan, Owners of the Adjacent Property at 
631 Bath Street, to Replace an Existing Sewer Service Lateral Displaced by the 
Ortega Street Bridge Replacement Project. 
  

4. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance For A Lease Agreement With Stearns 
Wharf Bait & Tackle (330.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving a Five-Year Lease 
Agreement with One Five-Year Option with Reggie Drew, Doing Business as 
Stearns Wharf Bait & Tackle, for the Lease Space at 232 Stearns Wharf, 
Effective December 15, 2011. 
  

5. Subject: Adoption Of Ordinance For Amendment To Lease With Mercury 
Air Center - Santa Barbara, Inc. (330.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving an Amendment to Lease 
Agreement No. 200846 Between the City and Mercury Air Center - Santa 
Barbara, Inc. 
  

6. Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinance Amending Municipal Code Title 14, 
Chapter 20 - Metering Requirements (540.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of 
title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending the 
Municipal Code by Repealing Section 14.20.160 Pertaining to Separate Water 
Meters. 
 



 

11/22/2011 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

7. Subject:  TEFRA Hearing For American Baptist Homes Of The West (Valle 
Verde) Debt Issuance  (280.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a public hearing and adopt, by reading of 
title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving a 
Tax-Exempt Bond Financing to be Issued by the California Statewide 
Communities Development Authority to Benefit American Baptist Homes of the 
West and Certain Affiliates. 

8. Subject:  Certification Of The Election Results Of The Official Canvass For 
The General Municipal Election Of November 8, 2011 (110.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Reciting the Fact of the Vote-By-Mail 
General Municipal Election Held on November 8, 2011, Declaring the Results 
and Such Other Matters as Provided by State Law. 

9. Subject:  Emergency Purchase Order Contract For Conejo Road Storm 
Drain Installation Project  (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council retroactively approve an Emergency Purchase 
Order Contract with MGE Underground for the Conejo Road Storm Drain 
Installation Project in the amount of $86,404.09, pursuant to Municipal Code 
Section 4.52.080, pertaining to emergency purchases. 

10. Subject:  Consent To Sublease Between Ampersand Aviation, LLC, And 
Signature Flight Support Corporation (330.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve and authorize the Airport Director to 
execute a Consent to Sublease Agreement between Ampersand Aviation, LLC, a 
California Limited Liability Company, and Signature Flight Support Corporation, a 
Delaware Corporation, for hangar building space at 495 South Fairview Avenue, 
at the Santa Barbara Airport. 

11. Subject:  Contract For Construction For The El Estero Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Pilot Fats, Oil And Grease Program (540.13) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Award a contract with Lash Construction, Inc., in their low bid amount of 

$572,500, for construction of the El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Pilot Fats, Oil and Grease Program, Bid No. 3637; 

 
(Cont’d) 



 

11/22/2011 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 4 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 
 
11. (Cont’d) 

 
B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute the contract and approve 

expenditures up to $90,000 to cover any cost increases that may result 
from contract change orders for extra work, differences between estimated 
bid quantities and actual quantities measured for payment, and additional 
scope to connect the project controls to the current Supervisory Control 
and Data Acquisition system;  

C. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with AECOM 
Technical Services, Inc., in the amount of $12,752 for construction support 
services, and authorize the General Services Manager to approve 
expenditures of up to $1,275 for extra services of AECOM that may result 
from necessary changes in the scope of work;  

D. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with Mimiaga 
Engineering Group in the amount of $43,280 for construction management 
services, and authorize the General Services Manager to approve 
expenditures of up to $4,328 for extra services of Mimiaga Engineering 
Group that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work; and 

E. Increase Wastewater Capital Fund appropriations and estimated revenues 
by $847,778, representing the total costs for this project that will be funded 
from a State- and City Council-approved loan from the Clean Water State 
Revolving Fund. 

 
 
12. Subject:  Set A Date For Public Hearing Regarding Proposed Designation 

Of City Landmarks (640.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council set the date of December 6, 2011, at 2:00 p.m. 
for a public hearing to consider the proposed designation of the following as City 
landmarks: 
• Frederick H. Booth House and Garage, 105 Ontare Hills Lane 
• State Street Facade of the Granada Building, 1214 State Street  
• Moreton Bay Fig Tree, 320 W. Pueblo Street 
  

NOTICES 

13. The City Clerk has on Thursday, November 17, 2011, posted this agenda in the 
Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet. 



 

11/22/2011 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 5 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 
 
NOTICES (CONT’D) 

14. Cancellation of the regular City Council meeting of November 29, 2011. 

15. Received a letter of resignation from Living Wage Advisory Committee Member 
Allen Williams; the vacancy will be part of the next City Advisory Group 
recruitment. 

 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

16. Subject:  Local Coastal Program Amendment And Zoning Ordinance 
Amendments For Veronica Meadows Specific Plan (680.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 

Santa Barbara Acknowledging Receipt of the California Coastal 
Commission's Resolution of Certification, Accepting and Agreeing to 
Suggested Modifications for the Final Certification, and Agreeing to Issue 
Coastal Development Permits for the Total Area Included in the Certified 
Local Coastal Program; and 

B. Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance 
of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Municipal Code Title 
28 by Amending Chapter 28.50, the "Veronica Meadows Specific Plan." 

 
 
MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 

17. Subject:  Interviews For City Advisory Groups (140.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold interviews of applicants to various City 
Advisory Groups. 
 (Continued from November 15, 2011, Item No. 18) 
  

COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 



 

11/22/2011 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 6 

CLOSED SESSIONS 

18. Subject:  Conference With Legal Counsel - Pending Litigation  (160.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider pending 
litigation pursuant to subsection (a) of section 54956.9 of the Government Code 
and take appropriate action as needed. Pending litigation considered is: Juan 
Richard Gutierrez v. City of Santa Barbara. 
 Scheduling:  Duration, 10 minutes; anytime 
 Report:  None anticipated 
  

19. Subject:  Conference With Legal Counsel - Pending Litigation  (160.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider pending 
litigation pursuant to subsection (a) of section 54956.9 of the Government Code 
and take appropriate action as needed.  The pending litigation is City of Santa 
Barbara v. Chevron USA, Inc., et al. (Contra Costa County Superior Court Case 
No. CIVMSC10-00896). 
 Scheduling:  Duration, 15 minutes; anytime 
 Report:  None anticipated 
  

ADJOURNMENT 

 
 







































































































































































































































































































ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



 RESOLUTION NO.    
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA ACKNOWLEDGING RECEIPT OF THE CALIFORNIA 
COASTAL COMMISSION’S RESOLUTION OF CERTIFICATION; 
ACCEPTING AND AGREEING TO SUGGESTED MODIFICATIONS 
FOR THE FINAL CERTIFICATION; AND AGREEING TO ISSUE 
COASTAL DEVELOPMENT PERMITS FOR THE TOTAL AREA 
INCLUDED IN THE CERTIFIED LOCAL COASTAL PROGRAM. 
 

WHEREAS, in June 1981, the California Coastal Commission certified the Land Use 
Plan of the City’s Local Coastal Program;  
 
WHEREAS, Section 30514 of the California Coastal Act provides that all amendments 
to a certified Local Coastal Plan shall be processed in accordance with Sections 30512 
and 30513 of the California Coastal Act;  
 
WHEREAS, a Final Environmental Impact Report for the project (2008 Final EIR) was 
prepared in compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act and was certified 
by Resolution of the City Council on June 17, 2008; 
 
WHEREAS, on June 17, 2008, the City Council adopted a Resolution to annex the 
Veronica Meadows Specific Plan Area into the City, with the portion of APN 047-010-016 
located within the Coastal Zone to be designated on the City’s Local Coastal Plan as 
Residential Two Dwelling Units per Acre, Buffer/Stream and Pedestrian/Equestrian Trail, 
and with a zoning designation of SP-9/S-D-3 (Specific Plan 9 and Coastal Overlay Zones);  
 
WHEREAS, on June 24, 2008, the City Council adopted an Ordinance creating Specific 
Plan 9 (Veronica Meadows Specific Plan) and applying it to APN 047-061-026 and APN 
047-010-016;  
 
WHEREAS, on August 5, 2008, an application for a Local Coastal Program Amendment 
was submitted to the California Coastal Commission; 
 
WHEREAS, on September 30, 2008, the California Coastal Commission found the 
application (SBC-MAJ-2-08) complete; 
 
WHEREAS, on December 11, 2008, the California Coastal Commission approved a one 
year time extension to process the City’s application; 
 
WHEREAS, on November 12, 2009, the City withdrew and resubmitted said application 
to the California Coastal Commission; 
 
WHEREAS, on November 13, 2009, the California Coastal Commission found the re-
submitted application (MAJ-3-09) complete; 
 



WHEREAS, on August 12, 2010, the California Coastal Commission approved the 
City’s Local Coastal Program Amendment (MAJ-3-09) with suggested modifications; 
 
WHEREAS, on January 11, 2011, the City requested a one year time extension for the 
City to accept the California Coastal Commission’s suggested modifications because 
the City had not yet formally received the suggested modifications from the Coastal 
Commission’s August 12, 2010 action; 
 
WHEREAS, on January 12, 2011, said suggested modifications were formally 
transmitted to the City;  
 
WHEREAS, on February 10, 2011, the California Coastal Commission approved a one 
year time extension for the City to accept the Coastal Commission’s suggested 
modifications; and 
 
WHEREAS, on _____________, the City Council adopted an ordinance incorporating 
the Coastal Commission’s modifications to the City’s Local Coastal Program application.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  The City Council acknowledges receipt of the California Coastal 
Commission’s resolution of certification, including the modifications suggested for final 
certification, for the Local Coastal Program Amendment MAJ-3-09. 
 
SECTION 2.  The City Council accepts and agrees to the modifications upon which the 
Local Coastal Program Amendment has been approved. 
 
SECTION 3.  The 2008 Final EIR certified on June 17, 2008 by the City Council 
(Resolution No. 08-049) is adequate to address the modifications suggested by the 
California Coastal Commission, and no further analysis or documentation is required 
under Sections 15162 or 15164 of the CEQA Guidelines.  The findings adopted as part 
of the City Council’s prior certification are hereby included as part of this action. 
 
SECTION 4.  The City Council amends the certified Local Coastal Plan, pages 7, 8 and 
184 to execute Suggested Modifications 1 and 2 as set forth in the approval. 
 
SECTION 5.  The City Council has introduced and will subsequently adopt amendments 
to the Local Coastal Program implementing ordinance to execute Suggested 
Modifications three through nine as set forth in the approval. 
 
SECTION 6.  The City Council agrees to issue coastal development permits for the total 
area included in the certified Local Coastal Program.   
 
 
 



 1  

COUNCIL INTRODUCTION DRAFT 11-22-11 
SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE. 

CHANGES SUGGESTED BY THE COASTAL 
COMMISSION ARE INDICATED BY  

UNDERLINE FOR ADDED TEXT AND 
STRIKEOUT FOR DELETED TEXT;  

CITY CHANGES ARE INDICATED BY  
DOUBLE UNDERLINE FOR ADDED TEXT AND 

STRIKEOUT UNDERLINE FOR DELETED TEXT.  
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AMENDING MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 28 BY 
AMENDING CHAPTER 28.50 THE “VERONICA MEADOWS 
SPECIFIC PLAN”. 

 
 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA does hereby 
ordain as follows: 
 
 
SECTION ONE. Findings 
 
The City Council makes the following findings in accordance with the City Charter 
and Santa Barbara Municipal Code to amend the Veronica Meadows Specific 
Plan: 
 
1.  A duly noticed public hearing before the City Council was held to receive 

and consider public testimony regarding the proposed changes to Chapter 
28.50 of the zoning ordinance.   

 
2.  An environmental impact report (“2008 Final EIR”) was prepared and 

certified in compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act.  The 
2008 Final EIR certified on June 17, 2008 by the City Council (Resolution 
No. 08-049) is adequate to address the modifications suggested by the 
California Coastal Commission, and no further analysis or documentation 
is required under Sections 15162 or 15164 of the CEQA Guidelines.  The 
findings adopted as part of the City Council’s prior certification are hereby 
included as part of this action. 

 
3. The Veronica Meadows Specific Plan meets all provisions of Article 8, 

Chapter 3, of Division 1 of Title 7 of the California Planning and Zoning 
Law (Government Code Sections 65450 through 65457). 

 



 2  

4. The Veronica Meadows Specific Plan is consistent with the General Plan 
and Local Coastal Plan in that the Veronica Meadows Specific Plan 
creates a single-family residential zone district where specific 
development standards are established to cluster development, maintain a 
semi-rural setting, restore a section of a degraded creek and riparian 
corridor, and, protect the natural environment. 

 
 
SECTION TWO. Zoning Code Amendment 
 
Chapter 28.50 of Title 28 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code is hereby 
amended to read as follows:   
 
0BSection 28.50.005. Legislative Intent. 
It is the purpose of the SP-9 Zone to establish a single-family residence district 
where specific development standards are established to cluster development, 
maintain a semi-rural setting, restore a section of degraded creek and riparian 
corridor, and protect the natural environment. 
 
1BSection 28.50.030. Uses Permitted. 
The uses permitted in the SP-9 Zone as depicted on attached revised Map A 
(attached as an Exhibit to the Chapter and dated as of June 24, 2008) shall be as 
follows:  
A. Area A1 – Residential Development:  Uses permitted in Area A1 (as 
depicted on revised Map A) are: 
 1. A single residential unit occupying a single lot. 
 2. Uses, buildings, and structures typically allowed by the City 
incidental, accessory and subordinate to the permitted residential uses. 
 3. A Home Occupation. 
 4. A State-licensed Small Family Day Care Home. 
 5. A State-licensed Large Family Day Care Home, subject to the 
provisions in Chapter 28.93 of this Title. 
 6. State authorized, licensed or certified use to the extent such a use 
is required by state Law. 
 7. Creek stabilization, habitat restoration, and related maintenance. 

 8. Private open space including, but not limited to, patios, decks, and 
yards for the private use of the residents of individual homes. 

 9. Common open space and passive recreational areas. 
 10. Public trails as approved by the City. 

 11. Brush removal, not including trees, for fire protection purposes, 



 3  

subject to Municipal Code provisions for vegetation removal. 
 12.  Utilities, storm drain system, flood control projects or other 

infrastructures as approved by the City. 
 13. The gazebo structure required by the Environmental Impact Report 

as mitigation for potentially significant impacts to cultural resources.Roads and 
driveways to access residential development. 

 14. The use of glass or plexiglass material for fencing or perimeter 
walls is prohibited including, but not limited to, on all residential properties. 
B. Area A2 – Creek Buffer & Limited Activity Zone:  For areas outside the 
Coastal Zone, uses permitted in Area 2 – Creek Buffer and Limited Activity Zone 
are as identified in Subsection A of this Section 28.50.030.  For areas within the 
Coastal Zone, uses permitted in “Area A2 – Creek Buffer and Limited Activity 
Zone” (as depicted on revised Map A)  are: 
  1.  A public access trail for pedestrian, equestrian, and bicycle (and 
other non-motorized modes of transportation) use, approximately five (5) feet in 
width, constructed of permeable material, and which provides improved public 
access to Arroyo Burro Beach Park.  The location of the public access trail shall 
be generally located as depicted on Map CB.  The final design and location of the 
public access trail, fence and gazebo/kiosk shall be reviewed and approved by a 
City-approved biologist.  Interpretive signage shall be placed along the public 
access trail that describes the entry road to Veronica Springs and other historical 
elements of the site.  In addition, a small educational gazebo/kiosk with a 100 sq. 
ft. or less footprint may be permitted near the terminus of Alan Road.  The public 
access trail and gazebo/kiosk shall be recorded as dedicated easements and 
maintained by the developer and subsequent homeowners in perpetuity.  The 
use of glass or plexiglass material for fencing is prohibited including, but not 
limited to, any fencing located adjacent to the public access trail.  Fencing shall 
be visually permeable to provide views and an aesthetic enjoyment of the creek 
environment while also allowing for free passage of wildlife. 
  2.  A multi-use public access way for bicyclists, wheelchairs, strollers, 
equestrians, limited vehicular access to each residential lot from the nearest 
public street outside the Coastal Zone, and a Fire Department turnaround.  The 
location of the multi-use public access way shall be as depicted on Map CB.  The 
access way shall be no more than sixteen (16) feet in width and shall be 
constructed of permeable material.  To mitigate for the loss of an adequate 
development buffer from the riparian habitat on site, construction of the multi-use 
access way within the Coastal Zone may only occur within the “Creek Buffer and 
Limited Activity Zone” provided that upland and riparian habitat areas on site are 
restored for all areas disturbed as a result of road/access way construction, 
pursuant to the Creek Habitat Plans described in Section 28.50.092 and the 
Upland Restoration Plan described in Section 28.50.094, and there are recorded 
agreements ensuring that this restoration is maintained by the permit applicant, 
or its successor, in perpetuity.  The multi-use public access way shall be 
recorded as dedicated easements and maintained by the permit applicant, or its 



 4  

successor, in perpetuity. The use of glass or plexiglass material for fencing is 
prohibited including, but not limited to, fencing located adjacent to the multi-use 
public access way.  Fencing shall be visibly permeable to provide views and an 
aesthetic enjoyment of the creek environment while also allowing for free 
passage of wildlife.   
  3.  Relocated water, sewer and other utility lines, as provided in 
Section 28.50.092.1 to be located below the surface of the multi-use public 
access way described in paragraph 2 of this Subsection B.  
  4.  The gazebo/kiosk structure as required by the Environmental 
Impact Report as mitigation for potentially significant impacts to cultural 
resources. 
  5.  Common open space and passive recreational areas with 
improvements limited to landscaping in accordance with Section 28.50.094. 
(Arroyo Burro Creek Upland Restoration Plan) within the Coastal Zone and in 
addition, roads, sidewalks and utilities are allowable uses for areas located 
outside the Coastal Zone. 
  6.  Uses permitted under Subsection C of this Section 28.50.030. 
C.  Area A3 – Creek Buffer:  For areas outside the Coastal Zone, uses 
permitted in Area 3 – Creek Buffer are as identified in Subsection A of this 
Section 28.50.030.  For areas within the Coastal Zone, uses permitted in “Area 
A3 – Creek Buffer” (as depicted on revised Map A) are: 
  1.  The public access trail described in Subsection B.1 of Section 
28.50.030.  Fencing between the trail and creek shall be installed, as provided in 
Section 28.50.140. The use of glass or plexiglass material for fencing or 
perimeter walls is prohibited located adjacent to the public access trail.  Fencing 
shall be visibly permeable to provide views and an aesthetic enjoyment of the 
creek environment while also allowing for free passage of wildlife.. 
  2.  Creek stabilization, habitat restoration and related maintenance in 
accordance with Section 28.50.092 (Creek Restoration). 
  3.  Improvements related to implementation of the provisions of 
Section 28.50.098 (Water Quality). 
  4.  Common open space and passive recreational areas. 
BD.  Area B4 – Open Space:  Area B4 (as depicted on revised Map A) shall 
be maintained in its natural state to preserve the steep slopes from erosion or 
landslide, preserve the creek environment, and maintain the scenic quality of the 
area.  Uses permitted in Area B4 are the following: 

 1.   Public trails along the Arroyo Burro Creek corridor. 
 2.   Brush removal, not including trees, for fire protection purposes, 

subject to Municipal Code provisions for vegetation removal. 
 3.   Subsurface utilities, flood control projects or other infrastructure as 

approved by the City. 
 



 5  

2BSection 28.50.035. Uses Permitted Upon the Granting of a Conditional Use 
Permit. 
The uses allowed by conditional use permit shall be as provided in Chapter 28.94 
of this Title.  However, no development is permitted in Area B4 under any 
circumstances. 
 
Section 28.50.040. City Conditions, Restrictions and Modifications. 
In connection with any development approval required to be issued by the City, 
the City may impose such appropriate and reasonable conditions and restrictions 
as it may deem necessary for the protection of property in the neighborhood or in 
the interest of public health, safety and welfare in order to carry out the purposes 
and intent of this Chapter.  While the provisions of Chapter 28.92 (Variances, 
Modifications and Zone Changes) shall be applicable within this zone, it is the 
intent of this Specific Plan that no variance, modification, or other approval shall 
be granted that would result in a number of residential units within the area 
encompassed by Areas 1, 2 and 3A that exceeds the maximum number of 
residential dwelling units originally specified in Section 28.50.085 and that Area 
B4 shall be permanently maintained in its natural state.   
 
Section 28.50.42. Owner Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions 
A. Preparation, review, and implementation of landscaping plans for the 
project shall include provisions for the control of invasive plant species to 
address the potential impacts of non-native plants colonizing adjacent native 
habitats.  Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions shall be recorded specifying 
that landscaping for individual housing lots shall not include any exotic invasive 
plant species.  The Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions shall be binding on 
each parcel, shall run with the land, and shall be included or incorporated by 
reference in every deed transferring a parcel. 
B. The Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions shall assign the responsibility 
for long-term maintenance and monitoring of the restored habitat areas, public 
access trail, and multi-use public access way to the homeowners association. 
C. The seller of any parcel in the SP-9 zone shall provide, in connection with 
the sale of a parcel, a homeowner information packet that explains the sensitivity 
of the restored creek and upland habitat areas onsite and the limits on public trail 
access within or adjacent to such areas, the prohibition on landscaping that 
includes exotic invasive plant species, and the limits on exterior residential 
lighting.  The Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions shall include the same 
explanation and restrictions. 
 
Section 28.50.045. Prohibition of Shiny Roofing and Siding. 
The materials used for roofing and siding on any building shall be of a non-
reflective nature and any shiny, mirror-like or glossy metallic finish for such 
materials is prohibited. 
 



 6  

Section 28.50.047. Lighting.  
 
A. STREETS AND COMMON AREAS.  The lowest output lighting 
permissible shall be used on all streets and common areas in the SP-9 Zone.  All 
street and common lighting shall be shielded and directed to the ground so that 
stray light effects are minimized, and to avoid direct illumination of the riparian 
corridor, except as needed for public safety.  Decorative lights shall not be 
directed into trees within the riparian restoration area.  Only ground mounted or 
bollard type lights shall be used along the Multi-Use Public Access Way within 
the Coastal Zone.  Lights shall not be permitted within 50 feet of the top of creek 
bank or the outer edge of the riparian canopy, whichever is greater. 
 
B. EXTERIOR RESIDENTIAL LIGHTING.  To prevent nighttime glare, any 
exterior residential lighting shall be of low intensity, low glare design, and be 
hooded to direct light downward and prevent spill over onto adjacent parcels and 
the riparian corridor.  All light fixtures shall be shielded so that neither the lamp 
nor the related reflective interior surface is visible from any of the observation 
points identified in the Veronica Meadows Specific Plan Final EIR.  All light poles, 
fixtures, and hoods shall be dark colored (non-reflective).  Security lighting shall 
be shielded so as not to create glare when viewed from the observation points.  
The light poles and fixtures shall not be obtrusive to travelers along Las Positas 
Road, the Alan Road neighborhood, or the public open space areas. 
 
Section 28.50.050. Building Height. 
No building in this zone shall exceed a height of thirty feet (30’) nor exceed the 
height limitation imposed for the protection and enhancement of solar access by 
Chapter 28.11 of this Title.    
 
Section 28.50.060. Setback and Open Yard Requirements. 
A.  FRONT SETBACK.  Each lot shall provide a front setback of not less than 
twenty feet (20’), except as permitted by Section 28.50.065. 
B.  INTERIOR SETBACKS.  Each lot shall provide interior setbacks of not 
less than six feet (6’), except as permitted by Section 28.50.065. 
C.  REAR YARD SETBACKS.  Each lot shall provide a rear setback of not 
less than six feet (6’), except that those lots abutting the open space drainage 
(identified as Lot 31 in Figure 4-7 of the 2008 Final Revised EIR) may be 
permitted to have a zero setback. 
D.  OPEN YARD: 
  1. Minimum Size:  One area of 1,250 square feet 
  2. Minimum Dimensions: 20 feet by 10 feet   
  3. Maximum Slope:  None 
  4. Location and Configuration:  
   a. Open yard may consist of any combination of ground level 
areas such as: patios, ground floor decks, pathways, landscaped areas, natural 



 7  

areas, flat areas, or hillsides, so long as the overall size and dimensions of the 
open yard meet the requirements described in Section 28.50.060.D.1 and 2 
above, and is not located in any of the following areas: 
    (1) A portion of the front yard; or 
    (2) Any areas designed for use by motor vehicles, 
including but not limited to driveways and parking areas; or 
    (3)  On decks, patios, terraces or similar, where the 
average height above grade is greater than 36”.  Average height shall be 
calculated by measuring the height of each corner of the deck, adding those 
heights together, and dividing by the number of corners. 
   b. If the open yard is provided on a slope greater than 20%, the 
open yard shall contain a flat area as follows: 
    (1) Minimum size: 160 square feet 
    (2)  Minimum dimensions: 10 feet by 10 feet  
    (3)  Maximum slope: 2% 
    (4) The flat area may be provided at grade, or on decks 
pursuant to Section 28.50.060.D.4.a.  
   c. Lots with multiple frontages shall have a primary front yard 
designated by the property owner, and agreed to in writing by the Community 
Development Director.  All other front yards shall be designated as secondary 
front yards.  Ground level open yard may be provided in the secondary front 
yard, up to ten feet (10’) from the front property line, provided that it is 
unobstructed and meets all other requirements. 
   d. On lots of less than 7,000 square feet and an average slope 
of 20% or less: 
    (1)  The open yard may be provided in one area, or in 
separate areas of not less than 400 square feet each (minimum dimensions of 20 
feet by 10 feet required), and 
    (2) Up to 850 square feet of the open yard may be 
provided in the remaining front yard, provided that it is unobstructed and meets 
the minimum dimensions required. 
E.  COASTAL ZONE.  All residential lots (including all private property 
boundaries/ lot lines) and residential development (including, but not limited to, 
perimeter walls and fencing of residential lots) in the Coastal Zone, except for the 
multi-use public access way and related driveway access improvements as 
provided in Subsection B of Section 28.50.030, shall be set back a minimum of 
one hundred (100) feet from the top of the bank of Arroyo Burro Creek or the 
outer edge of the riparian canopy, whichever is further from the creek center line, 
as identified in Map CB.  Restoration, erosion control, and public access 
improvements may be allowed in areas less than one hundred (100) from the top 
of the bank of Arroyo Burro Creek or the outer edge of the riparian canopy, 
provided these improvements are designed in a manner that minimizes adverse 
impacts to the adjacent riparian habitat area to the maximum extent feasible. 
 
Section 28.50.065. Reduction in Setback Requirements. 
A.  FRONT SETBACK REDUCTION.  The required front setback may be 











 12  

4. The plan shall identify and delineate on a site or grading plan the 
locations of all temporary erosion control measures. 

5. The plan shall specify that should grading take place during the 
rainy season (November 1 – March 31) the applicant shall install or construct 
temporary sediment basins (including debris basins, desilting basins or silt traps); 
temporary drains and swales; sand bag barriers; silt fencing; stabilize any 
stockpiled fill with geofabric covers or other appropriate cover; install geotextiles 
or mats on all cut or fill slopes; and close and stabilize open trenches as soon as 
possible.   

6. The erosion control measures shall be required on the project site 
prior to or concurrent with the initial grading operations and maintained 
throughout the development process to minimize erosion and sediment from 
runoff waters during construction.  All sediment should be retained on-site, 
unless removed to an appropriate, approved dumping location either outside of 
the Coastal Zone or within the Coastal Zone to a site permitted to receive fill. 

7. The plan shall also include temporary erosion control measures 
should grading or site preparation cease for a period of more than 30 days, 
including but not limited to: stabilization of all stockpiled fill, access roads, 
disturbed soils and cut and fill slopes with geotextiles and/or mats, sand bag 
barriers, silt fencing; temporary drains and swales and sediment basins.   The 
plans shall also specify that all disturbed areas shall be seeded with native grass 
species and include the technical specifications for seeding the disturbed areas.  
These temporary erosion control measures shall be monitored and maintained 
until grading or construction operations resume. 
Construction Best Management Practices 

8. No demolition or construction materials, debris, or waste shall be 
placed or stored where it may enter sensitive habitat, receiving waters or a storm 
drain, or be subject to wave, wind, rain, or tidal erosion and dispersion. 

9. No demolition or construction equipment, materials, or activity shall 
be placed in or occur in any location that would result in impacts to 
environmentally sensitive habitat areas, streams, wetlands or their buffers.  The 
100 foot buffer along Arroyo Burro Creek shall be delineated by a temporary 
fence during construction to prevent construction equipment and materials from 
being placed within the buffer, except for activities related to permitted uses 
within the 100 foot buffer zone, including approved creek and buffer restoration 
and enhancement activities. 

10. Any and all debris resulting from demolition or construction 
activities shall be removed from the project site within 24 hours of completion of 
the project. 

11. Demolition or construction debris and sediment shall be removed 
from work areas each day that demolition or construction occurs to prevent the 
accumulation of sediment and other debris that may be discharged into coastal 
waters. 



 13  

12. All trash and debris shall be disposed in the proper trash and 
recycling receptacles at the end of every construction day. 

13. The applicant shall provide adequate disposal facilities for solid 
waste, including excess concrete, produced during demolition or construction. 

14. Debris shall be disposed of at a legal disposal site or recycled at a 
recycling facility. If the disposal site is located in the Coastal Zone, a coastal 
development permit or an amendment to this permit shall be required before 
disposal can take place unless the Executive Director determines that no 
amendment or new permit is legally required. 

15. All stock piles and construction materials shall be covered, 
enclosed on all sides, shall be located as far away as possible from drain inlets 
and any waterway, and shall not be stored in contact with the soil. 

16. Machinery and equipment shall be maintained and washed in 
confined areas specifically designed to control runoff.  Thinners or solvents shall 
not be discharged into sanitary or storm sewer systems. 

17. The discharge of any hazardous materials into any receiving waters 
shall be prohibited. 

18. Spill prevention and control measures shall be implemented to 
ensure the proper handling and storage of petroleum products and other 
construction materials.  Measures shall include a designated fueling and vehicle 
maintenance area with appropriate berms and protection to prevent any spillage 
of gasoline or related petroleum products or contact with runoff.  The area shall 
be located as far away from the receiving waters and storm drain inlets as 
possible. 

19. Best Management Practices (BMPs) and Good Housekeeping 
Practices (GHPs) designed to prevent spillage and/or runoff of demolition or 
construction-related materials, and to contain sediment or contaminants 
associated with demolition or construction activity, shall be implemented prior to 
the on-set of such activity 

20. All BMPs shall be maintained in a functional condition throughout 
the duration of construction activity. 
B. Storm Water Management Plan.  In order to maintain, preserve, 
enhance and restore the long term biological productivity and water quality of 
Arroyo Burro Creek, development within the SP-9 Zone shall include a Storm 
Water Management Plan, including supporting calculations, shall be prepared by 
a qualified civil engineer or qualified licensed professional and shall incorporate 
Best Management Practices (BMPs) including site design and source control 
measures designed to control pollutants and minimize the volume and velocity of 
storm water and dry weather runoff leaving the developed site.   
In addition to the specifications above, the consulting civil engineer or qualified 
licensed professional shall certify in writing that the final Drainage and Runoff 



 14  

Control Plan is in substantial conformance with the following minimum 
requirements: 

1. The storm water treatment system shall convey and treat storm 
water in accordance with the City’s requirements and supplemented as 
necessary, with the design standards for detention basins and bioswales 
contained in Santa Barbara County’s Storm Water Management Plan.  The site 
plan and architectural design shall be modified during final design to include, to 
the extent practicable, storm water management design elements, also known as 
low impact design features.  Examples include:  roof drainage that is direct to 
infiltration trenches or bioswales; driveways constructed of permeable materials, 
pavers or strip pavement for tires only; openings in curbs to provide opportunities 
for infiltration in adjacent grassy swales along the roads; use of permeable 
surfaces instead of concrete in roadway ribbon gutters; and small depressions in 
front yards to collect roadside runoff for infiltration. 

2. BMPs should consist of site design elements and/or landscape 
based features or systems that serve to maintain site permeability, avoid directly 
connected impervious area and/or retain, infiltrate, or filter runoff from rooftops, 
driveways and other hardscape areas on site, where feasible.  Examples of such 
features include but are not limited to porous pavement, pavers, rain gardens, 
vegetated swales, infiltration trenches, cisterns. 

3. Landscaping materials shall consist primarily of native or other low-
maintenance plant selections which have low water and chemical treatment 
demands. An efficient irrigation system designed based on hydrozones and 
utilizing drip emitters or micro-sprays or other efficient design should be utilized 
for any landscaping requiring water application.   

4. All slopes should be stabilized in accordance with provisions 
contained in the Landscaping and/or Erosion and Sediment Control Conditions 
for this City and or Coastal Development Permit.  

5. Runoff shall be conveyed off site in a non-erosive manner. Energy 
dissipating measures shall be installed at the terminus of outflow drains. 

6 For projects located on a hillside, slope, or which may otherwise be 
prone to instability, final drainage plans should be approved by the project 
consulting geotechnical engineer. 

7 Should any of the project’s surface or subsurface drainage/filtration 
structures or other BMPs fail or result in increased erosion, the 
applicant/landowner or successor-in-interest shall be responsible for any 
necessary repairs to the drainage/filtration system or BMPs and restoration of the 
eroded area.  Should repairs or restoration become necessary, prior to the 
commencement of such repair or restoration work, the applicant shall submit a 
repair and restoration plan to the Community Development Director to determine 
if an amendment or new coastal development permit or city permit is required to 
authorize such work. 



 15  

B.The final Drainage and Runoff Control Plan shall be in conformance with the 
site/ development plans approved by the City of Santa Barbara Community 
Development Director.  Any changes to the City approved site/development 
plans required by the consulting civil engineer, or qualified licensed professional 
or engineering geologist shall be reported to the Community Development 
Director.  No changes to the City approved final site/development plans shall 
occur without an amendment to the city and or coastal development permit, 
unless the Community Development Director determines that no amendment is 
required. 
C. Water Quality Management Plan.  Development within the SP-9 Zone 
shall include preparation and implementation by the homeowners association of 
a water quality management plan for all open space maintained by the 
association which plan shall incorporate the principles, methods and approach of 
the City’s Integrated Pest Management (IPM) Plan (as it is revised and updated 
from time to time) in order to minimize the use of pesticides and herbicides for 
landscape maintenance to the extent feasible.  The plan shall also include trash 
cans, a mechanism for disposing of trash collected in association-managed 
areas, informational signage and mutt mitts along the pedestrian path and the 
multi-use path. 
 
Section 28.50.100. Off-street Parking. 
Off-street parking shall be provided as required in Chapter 28.90 of this Title. 
 
Section 28.50.105. Garages and Accessory Buildings. 
A.  Detached accessory buildings shall not exceed two (2) stories or thirty feet 
(30’) in height.   
B. Accessory buildings, excluding garages, shall not have a total aggregate 
square footage in excess of 500 square feet. 
C. Garages shall not have a total aggregate square footage in excess of 600 
square feet. 
 
Section 28.50.110. Home Size and Development Restrictions. 
A. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Code, residential structures in 
this zone, except as provided by Section 28.50.110.B below, shall not exceed a 
total net square footage of 3,800 square feet, excluding garages and accessory 
structures. 
B. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Code, residential structures in 
this zone located adjacent to and with access from Alan Road within 
approximately 130 feet of the southern boundary of the Specific Plan Area shall 
not exceed a total net square footage of 2,500 square feet, excluding garages 
and accessory structures.  Home size in this area shall be massed and designed 
to provide an appropriate transition to existing adjacent homes along Alan Road 
as determined appropriate by the Single Family Design Board. 



 16  

C. All residential structures shall be located within the “Grading and 
Landscaping” envelope shown on the Conceptual Site Plan exhibit as approved 
by the City in connection with the subdivision of this real property.   
D.   All residential lots (including all private property boundaries/lot lines) and 
residential structures (including but not limited to, perimeter walls and fencing of 
residential lots) shall be located a minimum of one-hundred feet (100’) from the 
top of creek bank or the outer edge of the canopy of riparian vegetation, 
whichever is the greater distance, and as identified in Map CB., which is defined 
as the Adjusted Top of Bank in Figure 4-4 of the certified Final Revised 
Environmental Impact Report for the Veronica Meadows Specific Plan, dated 
May 2008.   
E. For the purposes of this Chapter, the term “net square footage” shall be 
defined and calculated in the manner which that the term “Net Floor Area of a 
Building” is used and calculated pursuant to the SBMC Section 28.15.083. 
 
Section 28.50.115. Architectural Control. 
All development within the SP-9 Zone shall be subject to the review and approval 
of the Single Family Design Board for consistency with the City’s Single Family 
Design Guidelines; however, home sizes shall not be subject to height or size 
limitations beyond those identified in Sections 28.50.050, 28.50.105 and 
28.50.110, and no Floor Area Ratio maximums shall apply to the homes initially 
constructed within Areas 1, 2 and 3 A, but shall apply thereafter.  The grades of 
individual lots and roads shall blend with the natural topography of the site, 
minimize site grading, and balance on-site earthwork to the maximum extent 
feasible.  Where the Single Family Design Guidelines conflict with this Chapter, 
this Chapter shall govern proposed development, with emphasis on the 
Legislative Intent of the Zone (Section 28.50.005). 
 
Section 28.50.120.  Exemption from SBMC Chapter 28.43. 
Development within the SP-9 Zone shall be exempt from the Inclusionary 
Housing requirements of SBMC Chapter 28.43 – the “City of Santa Barbara 
Inclusionary Housing Ordinance.” 
 
Section 28.50.130.  Affordable Housing Provision. 
If Affordable Housing units are provided, the lots on which they are located shall 
be no less than 3,000 square feet in size.  Said lots and associated development 
shall comply with the provisions of this Zone in all other aspects, unless said 
provisions are reduced through a Modification, pursuant to Chapter 28.92 of this 
Title.  
 
3BSection 28.50.140. Fencing. 
4BFencing within fifty feet (50’) of the top of creek bank, which is defined as the 
Adjusted Top of Bank in the certified Final Environmental Impact Report for the 
Veronica Meadows Specific Plan dated May 2008,Low-profile post and rail or 



 17  

stanchion posts strung with cable fencing shall be provided along the east side of 
the public access trail between the trail and the top of creek bank to limit access 
to the top of the creek bank or to sensitive habitat areas.  The use of glass of 
plexiglass material for fencing is prohibited.  The fencing shall be visually 
permeable to provide views and an aesthetic enjoyment of the creek 
environment, allow free passage of wildlife, and shall be approved by the 
Community Development Director after being reviewed for comments only by the 
Single Family Design Board.  Fencing abutting the open space drainage 
(identified as Lot 31 in Figure 4-7 of the Final Revised EIR) shall be open.  All 
other fencing shall be subject to the provisions of Section 28.87.170 of this Title. 
 
5BSection 28.50.150. Area Maps.  
6BA. Map A.  The revised map attached hereto as Exhibit A (dated as of June 
24, 2008 05-07-2008 09-22-2010) and labeled “Map A: Veronica Meadows Las 
Positas Road Specific Plan Area (SP-9)” is hereby approved and incorporated in 
this Chapter by this reference. 
B.  Map B.  The map attached hereto as Exhibit B (dated as of 07-12-2010) 
and labeled “Map B: Veronica Meadows Revised Site Plan (July 2010)” is hereby 
incorporated into this Chapter by this reference. 



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT B



Agenda Item No.  ________ 
File Code No. 140.05  

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 1, 2011 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Clerk’s Office, Administrative Services Department 
 
SUBJECT: Interviews For City Advisory Groups 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Hold interviews of applicants to various City Advisory Groups; and 
B. Continue interviews of applicants to November 15, and November 22, 2011. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Interviews of applicants for various positions on City Advisory Groups are to be held on 
November 1, 2011, at 2:00 p.m.  Applicants will also have the option to be interviewed on 
November 15, at 6:00 p.m. and November 22, 2011, at 2:00 p.m.   
 
For the current vacancies, 66 individuals submitted 72 applications.  A list of eligible 
applicants and pertinent information about the City Advisory Groups is attached to this 
report. 
 
Applicants have been notified that to be considered for appointment they must be 
interviewed.  Applicants have been requested to prepare a 2-3 minute verbal presentation 
in response to a set of questions specific to the group for which they are applying. 
 
Appointments are scheduled to take place on December 13, 2011. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: List of Applicants 
 
PREPARED BY: Cynthia M. Rodriguez, CMC, City Clerk Services Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Marcelo A. López, Assistant City Administrator/Administrative 

Services Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 



1 
 

ACCESS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

• Four vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2014. 
• Residents of the City or a full-time employees of an entity doing business within the City who demonstrate an 

interest, experience, and commitment to issues pertaining to disability and access and who represent the public at 
large: 
 Two members from the Architectural/Engineering/Building Community; and 
 Two members from the Disability Community. 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Architectural/ 
Engineering/Building 
Communities (2) 
 

Brian Barnwell 12/16/08 
(3 years) 

  

Jeanette Chian 12/16/08 
(3 years) 

  

Disability Community (2) Mary Ellen Bangs    

Robert Burnham 6/28/11 
(6 months) 

  

Ken McLellan 12/15/09 
(2 years) 

  

Scott Smigel    

 



2 
 

ARCHITECTURAL BOARD OF REVIEW 

• Two vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Qualified electors of the City or the County of Santa Barbara; any of the following: 

 Licensed architect; 
 Member who possess professional experience in related fields including, but not limited to, landscape 

architecture, building design, structural engineering or industrial design; or 
 Public at large. 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Licensed Architect/ 
Professional 
Qualifications/ 
Public at Large (2) 
 

Travis B. Colburn  1) Architectural Board of Review; 
2) Planning Commission 

Architect; Qualified Elector - City 

Kirk B. Gradin   Architect; Qualified Elector - City 

Robert Kupiec  1)  Architect; Qualified Elector - 
County 

Kevin Moore   Architect; Qualified Elector - City 

Stephanie Poole   Architect; Qualified Elector – City 

Barry Winick  1) Historic Landmarks Commission; 
2) Architectural Board of Review 

Architect; Qualified Elector - City 

 
 

 



 

3 
 

ARTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

• Three vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Persons with acknowledged accomplishments in the arts and who demonstrate an interest in and commitment to 

cultural and arts activities. 
• Qualified electors of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified 
Electors (3) 
 

Darian Bleecher 6/22/04 & 12/18/07 
(7 years, 6 months) 

  

Charmaine Curtis Jacobs  1) Historic Landmarks; 
2) Parks and Recreation; & 
3) Arts Advisory Committee 

Current Planning 
Commissioner; term expires 
12/31/11 

Linda Saccoccio    

Carol M. Taylor    

Thea Vandervoort    

Nathan Vonk    

 



4 
 

BUILDING AND FIRE CODE BOARD OF APPEALS 

• One vacancy. 
• Open term. 
• Resident of the City or adjoining unincorporated areas of Santa Barbara County. 
• Appointee shall demonstrate knowledge and expertise in specialty areas governed by the construction and fire 

codes of the City. 
• Appointee may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Resident of the City or 
unincorporated area 
of Santa Barbara 
County (1) 
 

None    

 



5 
 

CENTRAL COAST COMMISSION FOR SENIOR CITIZENS 
 

• One vacancy. 
• Term expires 6/30/2013. 
• Resident of the City. 
• Appointee may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Resident of the City (1) None    

 
 



6 
 

CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Qualified electors of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government and, for 1 year after ceasing to be 

a member, may not be eligible for any salaried office or employment with the City. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Electors (2) Alan T. Kasehagen  11/25/03 & 12/18/07 
(8 years) 

  

Donna Lewis 6/28/05 & 12/18/07 
(8 years) 

  



7 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 

• Five vacancies. 
• One term expires 12/31/2013; one term expires 12/31/2014; and three terms expire 12/31/2015 
• Residents or employees within the City but need not be qualified electors of the City. 
• One representative from each: 

 Eastside Neighborhood  Housing Interests  Human Services Agencies 
 Senior Community  Youth Oriented Services  

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Eastside 
Neighborhood (1) 

Veronica Loza 7/3/07 & 12/18/07 
(4 years, 6 months) 

  

Housing Interests (1)     

Human Services 
Agencies (1) 

Alejandra Gutierrez   Also eligible for the Youth 
Oriented Services 
category 

Senior Community (1)     

Youth Oriented 
Services (1) 

Daniel Ramirez 6/30/09 
(2 years, 6 months) 

1) Community Development & 
Human Services  
Committee; 

2) Planning Commission 

 

 
 



8 
 

COMMUNITY EVENTS & FESTIVALS COMMITTEE 
 

• Six vacancies. 
• Two terms expire 12/31/2014; and four terms expire 12/31/2015. 

 Three representatives of the Business/Lodging/Retail Industry; 
 One representative of the Cultural Arts; and 
 Two residents of the City who represent the public at large (one of whom shall not represent any specific 

group). 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Business/Lodging/Retail 
Industry (3) 

Jason McCarthy 12/13/05 & 12/18/07 
(6 years) 

 County 

Laura McIver   City 

Cultural Arts (1) Laura Inks   County 

Public at Large (2) Jacqueline Kronberg   City 

Kate Schwab   City 

 
 
 



9 
 

CREEKS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

• Four vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Residents of the City of Santa Barbara: 

 One representative from the Hotel/Lodging Industry; and 
 Three members with experience in ocean use (e.g., recreational user or commercial fisherman, etc.), 

business, environmental issues and/or provide community at large representation. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Hotel/Lodging Industry (1) Paul Bullock 6/30/09 
(2 years, 6 months) 

 City 

Experience in ocean use, 
business, or 
environmental issues, 
and/or represents the 
community at large (3) 

Kirsten Castagnola   City 

 Jeremy Lyter   City 

Stephen MacIntosh 6/28/11 
(6 months) 

 City 

Lee Moldaver 7/11/06 & 12/18/07 
(5 years, 6 months) 

 City 

Judy Sanregret   City 

Kathleen “Betsy” Weber 12/15/09 
(2 years) 

 City 

 



10 
 

DOWNTOWN PARKING COMMITTEE 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Residents of the City or the County of Santa Barbara who demonstrate an interest and knowledge of downtown 

parking issues. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Resident of the City or 
the County (2) 
 

Ruth Ann Bowe   City 

William “Bill” Collyer 7/1/08 
(3 years, 6 months) 

 City 

Tom A. Williams 7/11/06 & 12/18/07 
(5 years, 6 months) 

 City 

 



11 
 

FIRE AND POLICE COMMISSION 
 

• Two vacancies 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Qualified electors of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Electors (2) 
 

Jennifer Christensen 12/15/09 
(2 years) 

  

Thomas Parker    

John J. Torell    

Paul R. Zink  1) Planning Commission; 
2) Fire & Police Commission 

 

Current Architectural Board 
of Review Member; term 
expires 12/31/14 

 



12 
 

FIRE AND POLICE PENSION COMMISSION 
 

• Three vacancies. 
• One term expires 12/31/2012; one term expires 12/31/2013; and one term expires 12/31/2014. 

 One active retired police officer who need not be a resident or qualified elector of the City; and 
 Two qualified electors of the City who are not active firefighters or police officers for the City of Santa 

Barbara. 
 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Active/Retired Police 
Officer (1) 
 

None   
 

Qualified Electors (2) 
 

None    

 



13 
 

HARBOR COMMISSION 

• Two vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Qualified electors of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Electors (2) Frank Kelly 12/17/02, 11/25/03 & 
12/18/07 
(9 years) 

  

Helene Webb    

 



14 
 

HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION 

• Two vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Qualified electors of the City; any of the following: 

 Licensed Architect  Licensed Landscape Architect 
 Professional Architectural Historian  Public at large 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified elector of 
the City who is a 
licensed Architect, 
licensed Landscape 
Architect,  
Professional 
Architectural 
Historian, or public at 
large (2) 
 

Michael Drury 7/1/08 
(3 years, 6 months) 

 Public at large – Qualified 
Elector - City 

Charmaine Curtis 
Jacobs 

 1) Historic Landmarks 
Commission; 

2) Parks and Recreation 
Commission;  

3) Arts Advisory Committee 

Public at large – Qualified 
Elector - City 
(Current Planning 
Commissioner; Term expires 
12/31/11) 

Ronald Sorgman   Architect – Qualified Elector - 
City 

Barry Winick  1) Historic Landmarks 
Commission; 

2) Architectural Board of Review 

Architect – Qualified Elector - 
City 

 



15 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY COMMISSION 

• One vacancy. 
• Term expires 2/15/2014 (Appointment effective on 2/16/12). 
• Resident of the City who is a senior tenant (age 62 or older and who is receiving housing assistance from the 

Housing Authority of the City of Santa Barbara) 
• Appointee may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Senior Tenant (1) 
 

Victor Suhr    

 



16 
 

LIBRARY BOARD 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Qualified electors of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector (2) Christine Roberts 12/16/08 
(3 years) 

  

 



17 
 

MEASURE P COMMITTEE 
 

• Six vacancies. 
• Two terms expire 12/31/2012; One term expires 12/31/2013; two terms expire 12/31/2014; and one term expires 

12/31/2015 
• Two residents of the City; and one representative from each: 

 Civil Liberties Advocate  Criminal Defense Attorney 
 Drug abuse & treatment & prevention counselor  Medical Professional 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Civil Liberties Advocate (1) Luis Esparza 7/11/06 & 12/18/07 
(4 years, 9 months) 

  

Criminal Defense Attorney 
(1) 

None    

Drug abuse, treatment & 
prevention counselor (1) 

None    

Medical Professional (1) None    

Residents of the City (2) None    



18 
 

NEIGHBORHOOD ADVISORY COUNCIL 
 

• Three vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015 
• Residents of the City who need not be qualified electors of the City. 
• Two representatives of the public at large; and one representative from any of the following neighborhoods: 

 Eastside  Lower Eastside  Laguna 
 Westside   Lower Westside  

• One appointee may be a youth member (age 16 or older). 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd 

 
Notes 

Neighborhood 
Representative (1) 

Teresa Peña 3/1/11 
(9 months) 

 Eastside Neighborhood 

Public at Large (2) Sally Kingston 3/1/11 
(9 months) 

  

 



19 
 

PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION 
 

• One vacancy.   
• Term expires 12/31/2015. 
• Qualified elector of the City, or a resident of the City and a citizen of the United States who is 16 years of age or older. 
• Appointee may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector of 
the City, or a 
resident of the City 
and a citizen of the 
United States who is 
16 years of age or 
older (1) 

Megan Luciana Diaz   Qualified Elector 

Charmaine Curtis 
Jacobs 

 1) Historic Landmarks 
Commission; 

2) Parks & Recreation 
Commission; & 

3) Arts Advisory Committee 

Qualified Elector  

(Current Planning 
Commissioner; term 
expires 12/31/11) 

 Charles Trentacosti 6/28/11 
(6 months) 

 Qualified Elector 

 
 



20 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Qualified electors of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified 
Electors (2) 
 

William A. Anikouchine   Current Harbor Commissioner; term 
expires 12/31/11 

John P. Campanella    

Travis B. Colburn  1) Architectural Board of 
Review 

2) Planning Commission 

 

Stephen M. Cushman    

June Pujo    

Daniel Ramirez  1) Community Development & 
Human Services Committee; 

2) Planning Commission 

 

Joseph A. Rution    

Dan Secord    

Addison S. Thompson    

Paul R. Zink  1) Planning Commission; 
2) Fire & Police Commission 

 

Current Architectural Board of Review 
Member; term expires 12/31/14 



21 
 

RENTAL HOUSING MEDIATION TASK FORCE 
 

• Four vacancies. 
• One term expires 12/31/2012; and three terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Residents of the City or the County of Santa Barbara: 

 One homeowner  Two landlords  One tenant 
Note:  Non-resident members must be owners of residential rental property within the City limits or 
affiliated with organizations concerned with landlord-tenant issues within the City limits. 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Homeowner (1) David McDermott   City 

Landlords (2) Silvio DiLoreto 6/28/05 & 12/18/07 
(6 years, 6 months) 

 County 

Martin B. Manzo   City 

Tenant (1) David M. Brainard 6/28/11 
(6 months) 

 City 

Michael Petretta   County 



22 
 

SINGLE FAMILY DESIGN BOARD  
 

• One vacancy. 
• Term expires 6/30/2015. 
• Resident of the City or the County who is a licensed landscape architect. 
• Appointee may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Licensed Landscape 
Architect (1) 
 

None.    

 



23 
 

WATER COMMISSION 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Qualified electors of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Electors (2) 
 

Barry Keller 7/1/08 
(3 years, 6 months) 

  

 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  160.03 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 22, 2011 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Risk Management Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT: Conference With Legal Counsel – Pending Litigation  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council hold a closed session to consider pending litigation pursuant to subsection 
(a) of section 54956.9 of the Government Code and take appropriate action as needed. 
Pending litigation considered is: Juan Richard Gutierrez v. City of Santa Barbara, Case 
number ADJ5704924. 
 
Scheduling:   Duration, 10 minutes; anytime 
Report:  None anticipated 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Mark W. Howard, Risk Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Finance Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  160.03 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 22, 2011 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Attorney’s Office 
 
SUBJECT:  Conference With Legal Counsel – Pending Litigation  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council hold a closed session to consider pending litigation pursuant to subsection 
(a) of section 54956.9 of the Government Code and take appropriate action as needed. 
 
The pending litigation is City of Santa Barbara v. Chevron USA, Inc., et al. (Contra 
Costa County Superior Court Case No. CIVMSC10-00896). 
 
SCHEDULING: 
 
Duration:  15 minutes, anytime 
 
REPORT: 
 
None anticipated 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Stephen P. Wiley, City Attorney 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 


	1.DOC
	2.DOCX
	3.DOCX
	4.DOCX
	5.DOC
	6.PDF
	7.DOC
	8.DOC
	9.DOC
	10.DOC
	11.DOC
	12.DOC
	13.DOC
	14.DOC
	15.DOC
	16.PDF
	17.DOC
	18.DOC
	19.DOC
	20.DOC
	21.PDF
	22.PDF
	23.PDF
	24.DOC
	25.DOC
	26.PDF
	27.PDF
	28.DOC
	29.DOC
	30.DOC
	31.DOC
	Mayor
	Randy Rowse
	Michael Self
	NOVEMBER 22, 2011
	AGENDA
	ORDER OF BUSINESS



